ASSOCIATED GOVERNMENTS
OF NORTHWEST COLORADO

MINUTES
AGNC BOARD OF DIRECTORS & MEMBER MEETING
October 23, 2024
9:00 am to 1:30 pm
Garfied County Admin Bldg, 2" Floor Meeting Room,
195 W. 14™ Street, Rifle, CO 81650

ZOOM: https://us02web.zoom.us/|/2510562431 Password: 2462
PHONE: +1 (669) 900-6833 Meeting ID: 251 056 2431 Password: 2462

Pledge of allegiance

Call to order — Chairman Cody Davis called the meeting to order at 9:00am. Introductions were made.

Approval of minutes — Lisa Piering made a motion to approve the September 181, 2024, meeting minutes; Doug
Overton seconded the motion; the motion passed unanimously.

Financial report — Tiffany Dickenson presented the September 2024 financials. The profit and loss report was
presented, with nothing new to note. Tiffany said there was negative income for the month, but positive for the
year. The balance sheet reviewed. Accounts receivable was reviewed which included Jackson County, and
Tiffany said she has not heard back from them. She then spoke about RCEDP and Contribution Project fees.
The check register was reviewed including the deposit from NCEI for marketing, and the payment to Tactical
which is Matt Solomon. A motion to approve the September 2024 financials was made by Chris Nichols;
Grady Hazelton seconded the motion; the motion passed unanimously.

Tiffany discussed the amount due from RCEDP. She said John Bristol asked for a payment record and after it
was reviewed, they noted that RCEDP thought they were paid up, however, they still owe one payment. John
said there was one payment from 2023 that they missed. Tiffany said that with the strained relationship with
Routt County it may cause more issues to ask for that payment. She said RCEDP does have the full amount
budgeted for next year. She asked that we waive the outstanding balance of $7K. A motion to waive the
outstanding $7,000 from RCEDP was made by Tony Bohrer; Doug Overton seconded the motion; the motion
passed unanimously.

The proposed 2025 budget and remaining expenditures for 2024 were reviewed. Tiffany explained that actual
numbers are run through September 30, 2024, and then an estimate is made for the remainder of the 2024 year.
She noted that we went over on income in part due to interest and Contribution Project fees, and that we have a
net income estimate of about $25K. She spoke about the partnership passthrough account, which is NCEI
expenditures. She said that we have received approval for the CEDS implementation grant. She spoke about the
overage on the Grant Navigator program due to the uncertainty of receiving another year of funding. She noted
that the income will decrease due to forgiving the RCEDP $7K due. A motion to approve the remaining 2024
expenditures was made by Chris Nichols; seconded by Stan Harbaugh; the motion passed unanimously.

PO BOX 593 GRAND JUNCTION, CO 81502 PHONE 970-665-1095 WWW.AGNC.ORG


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/2510562431

The 2025 Budget was presented. Tiffany explained that the budget includes increasing the cost of the ED
Summit due to a speaker that will cost about $10K, so we anticipate seeking more sponsorships to pay for this.
She spoke about the partnership passthrough income for the NCEI which includes more grant funding that will
be coming next year. She noted that AAA provides us with the budget numbers for their accounts. She spoke
about the salary increases including the Executive Director salary, that the ED Coordinator is staying the same,
and an increase for the Admin Assistant. She spoke about the good work that the Admin Assistant is doing.
She noted the increased amount budgeted for consulting, which will be for Prosono and strategic planning. She
noted that she is asking for an additional amount for the Orfs for the Government Relations Contract. She said
they have not raised their fees, and she believes they deserve the increase and that they are an amazing asset for
AGNC. She spoke about the increase in marketing for the website and the economic newsletters. She noted that
the net income is budgeted at -$32K and that we use the fund balance to cover that deficit. Cody Davis asked
what the fund balance currently is, and Tiffany explained the amount to be about $700K currently. A motion to
approve the 2025 budget was made by Lisa Piering; seconded by Tony Bohrer; the motion passed unanimously.

Project and Committee Reports:

Area Agency on Aging — Heather Jones, NW CO AA0A Director provided an overview of AAA efforts. Heather
reported that there was a Western Colorado Candidate Forum last month that she attended. She said the
candidates were mostly focused on the budget deficit. She said that RTI International visited their AAA on
October 4th and they interviewed several programs. She said that AAA recommended that new policies not
include unfunded mandates. She said their research study will continue to other areas. She said the state long
term care ombudsman visited the region on October 8 and 9 for their annual visit and that the visit went well.
She stated that she attended the age friendly expo. She said they received notice of carryover funds at about
$200K and she will hopefully present an updated budget at the next board meeting. She said that they were
notified that they will be receiving $1250 in media funding for SHIP in Moffat and Rio Blanco counties. She
said they also received a contract amendment from HCPF for additional funding of up to $48.5K. Heather’s
report is attached as Appendix A.

NCEI Update — Matt Solomon gave an NCEI update. He stated the EnergyWerx grant has been completed and
the report is being circulated nationwide now. He said he made a presentation to the state legislature and the
energy office. He said the first round of meetings for the ECA grant went well and he encouraged everyone to
sign up to meet with him if they have not done so. He said that the CLEAP grant is also going well, and they
should have a good presentation in place for the JOLT meeting next June. He said that EnergyWerx has asked
that we apply for a 2" round of funding, and he is working on this currently.

CDLE Workforce Update — Carolyn Tucker joined online and presented a PowerPoint on the Workforce
update including unemployment rates for the region. She said that most counties have gone down slightly from
August to September of 2024. She spoke about the stresses of the workforce, which remain the same. She said
that the long-term demographic trends affecting the workforce are still with us and will remain for some time.
She said the bottom line is that there are not as many workers available to work, and they have more choice.
She spoke about the actions to consider including succession planning, upskilling current employees,
supervisory training, leadership training and wage analysis. She spoke about training employees and investing
in the workforce. She spoke about different workforce development activities including sector partnerships in
manufacturing in Montrose, early childhood education in Montrose and broadband in SW Colorado. She also
spoke about upskilling current employees. She spoke about the services that Workforce can offer and included
slides highlighting the services.

DOLA Update — Dana Hlavac presented a DOLA update and said they will be determining the funding for the
next cycle. He said that housing projects will be extremely competitive in the next cycle. He encouraged
everyone to give their feedback to the DOLA leadership later in the meeting.

PO BOX 593 GRAND JUNCTION, CO 81502 PHONE 970-665-1095 WWW.AGNC.ORG



Legislative Update — Richard Orf and Dianna Orf presented a legislative update. Richard said that the
elections will determine quite a few things in the state. He spoke about the rallies for opposition to Proposition
127. Dianna she said they are watching the election carefully and looking into the backgrounds of the
candidates. She said they know of a number of bills that will be introduced, and the list is in their report. She
said they watch the Water and Ag Resources Committee carefully. She said they will need to find funding for
water projects once severance tax funding goes away. She also spoke about legislation to remove restrictions
on backflow. She spoke about legislation that would provide immunity during emergency services. She said
that the budget is very tight this year and any new programs will be challenging. She reviewed the various
ballot measures and said they are listed in the report. Richard said the big issue will be the state budget and
they will watch closely for any changes to current funding. He also said that the tax policy bill that will be
presented this year will also be watched closely. Dianna noted that the budget will be presented in November,
and then the JBC will make recommendations, and the hearings will begin in January. She said they will have a
better idea of the budget after November. Bill Carlson commented on how bad the state of Colorado’s software
is and the issues his clients have had with the system and mistakes being made by the department of revenue.
Tiffany spoke about the recent notice that AGNC received regarding a missing payment from 2021. She said
AGNC did not miss a payment, and the issue has been resolved, but that she believes there is a problem.
Richard said he would not be surprised if someone runs an initiative to remove TABOR in the near future.
Mike Samson asked if the DOR is in charge of late filings for election contributions. Richard said it would be
the secretary of state. Lisa Piering said they have had problems submitting online for the department of
revenue. Richard said he is taking notes and asked if anyone has specific issues to please let him know.
Tiffany spoke about the issues AGNC has had to deal with regarding the new OEDIT portal for the Enterprise
Zone. Richard said these would be good issues to take to the Smart Act hearings. Bill Carlson spoke about
how complicated sales tax has become for local festivals. He said he would like to see the local communities
take on the liability of collecting and paying sales taxes for the vendors at the festivals. Richard asked Bill to
follow up with him about it. Jim Mann with Silt said he would not want to be responsible for collecting the
sales taxes. Mike Samson told the Orfs to keep up the good work. Richard mentioned that Amazon is looking
at small nuclear and he will forward the article to AGNC. The Orfs report is attached as Appendix B.

Downtown Colorado Inc — Bill Shrum presented via zoom on their Challenge Program. He introduced the
program with a PowerPoint presentation. Kylie Brown also presented and said she is the program manager for
the program. She said they have had the program since 2017 and have worked with over 50 communities. She
said there is a lot of educational content and tools that come with the program. She said the tools help
communities assess their capacity for development and create a strong message. She spoke about the goals of
the program which are included on the slides. She spoke about the 3 levels of participation based on Tier 1,
Tier 2 and Tier 3 communities, with Tier 1 getting the most support, and Tier 3 being self-paced. She said that
every tier will have access to all tools. Bill spoke about the tools and resources that are available with the
program including the capacity assessment, feasibility Tetrad, community profile and pitch sheet, and the KSU
brownfields tools. He encouraged all communities to take the capacity assessment, which is free, and let DCI
send a profile. Mistalynn commented that there is an underwriter and that all our communities should take
advantage of the program. Bill spoke about the process and measuring awareness, attitude, resources and
activities. Bill said that the next steps would be to schedule a meeting with the DCI team at bit.ly/DCl1onl and
to take the community capacity assessment at bit.ly/DClCapacity. Kylie spoke about the commitment for the
program including the process, training and education, and material development. She spoke about the timeline
which takes place over 6 months. Bill spoke about the KSU TAB resources for brownfield sites and that they
are very interested in doing work in rural areas of Colorado. Bill said the first webinar for the next cohort is in
mid-November, so he encouraged anyone interested to get back to them quickly. Tiffany asked if there is a size
restriction for the communities, and Bill said there is not a size restriction .

DOLA Leadership - Eric Bergman with DOLA reported that he was with Colorado Counties previously and
has been with DOLA for about 5 months. He said he is the head of the division of local governments. He said

PO BOX 593 GRAND JUNCTION, CO 81502 PHONE 970-665-1095 WWW.AGNC.ORG


bit.ly/DCI1on1
bit.ly/DCICapacity

they have many programs that they administer grants for. He said that DOLA leadership was in Rifle for the
Small Communities meeting and that they would be joining the board meeting for lunch and then travel to
Grand Junction for some project tours. He said they are making an effort to be in the communities that they are
serving. He said they are hiring more people, and they need staff to help communities apply for funding.
Tiffany Dickenson asked if they were aware of the modular housing projects like EcoDwelling and Habitat’s
manufacturing facility in Rifle. Additional members of the DOLA leadership team arrived and introduced
themselves. Tiffany spoke again about the values of the modular housing projects. Maria De Cambra said that
most of the funding for those types of projects would come from OEDIT. She said that the governor’s office is
very supportive of these types of projects. She asked what some of the challenges are that the communities are
facing with DOLA. She said that one of their priorities has been process improvement. She said that one-time
COVID dollars are going away, and they are working on finding that gap funding. She said they are seeking
funding for infrastructure support. Bill Carlson spoke about modular housing and flood plain maps that are out
of date because FEMA has not updated the maps, which causes uninsured properties. He asked if they were
looking at this. Maria said they look at many different issues when assessing a project for viability. James
Russel, DOLA housing specialist, spoke about evaluations that take place for new developments including
modular housing. He encouraged communities to talk with them early about projects so the applications can be
as competitive as possible. He said the process is getting very competitive and the earlier you speak with them
the better. Maria mentioned that FEMA is partnering with a Colorado company to provide temporary housing.
Cody Davis asked about replacing severance tax funds. Maria said they should get more information when the
budget is presented. Cody said that local government relies on the severance tax fund. Alicia Gresley asked
about DOLA’s perspective on our local communities and asked what some of the challenges are that they see.
Maria said that one common thread they are seeing across the state is housing and homeownership. Dana
Hlavac said they are also seeing the challenges associated with infrastructure for new housing. Alicia said she
sees that it is more complicated than just new housing. She said that it feels like a loss of ability to survive in
small communities. Maria said she thinks it is important for the divisions to work hand in hand to support
projects. She said they have other programs that she would like to see used for law enforcement, environmental
equality, land use planning, etc. Jim Mann spoke about all the new construction that no one can afford in his
community. He said they have residents in old trailers that can’t be insured, and the residents can’t afford to
replace. He would like to see good programs for bringing up dilapidated housing. Maria said she would like to
connect him to someone who might have more information for him. Jim said he is also looking for a program
to help them speak Spanish so they can better engage with their Spanish community. Tinker Duclo spoke about
the classes they can provide at CMC, but that it can take several years to become fluent. Chris Nichols said that
managing grants through DOLA is much easier than other programs like OEDIT, OJT and EDA. He said that
capacity issues for small communities impacts their ability to apply for these grants. Jim Mann spoke about the
increases in fees and building codes that make home building so expensive. Alicia Gresley spoke about
communicating with communities about the costs of housing projects, infrastructure, and impacts on the
community. Chris Nichols asked where they are going to go for future funding when severance tax dollars dry
up. Maria said that she knows those conversations have started and to send them any ideas. Dave Reynolds
said he appreciates DOLA’s ability to find information and pass it along, and he appreciated the small
community workshop. Cody Davis asked if there were any last questions or comments for DOLA before they
left. Mistalynn Meyeraan commented that as the RGN she requests that the technical assistance grant continue
for the communities. She also said the turnaround time is slow for the technical assistance grant from DOLA.
Maria said she appreciated the comments and that it is important for them to know these types of concerns.
Eric, James and Maria left their contact information.

Round Table Discussion

Grady Hazelton said they have a list of projects for New Castle and said they appreciate DOLA.

PO BOX 593 GRAND JUNCTION, CO 81502 PHONE 970-665-1095 WWW.AGNC.ORG



Alicia Gresley said that the City of Rifle will have a new representative for AGNC, Michael Clancey. She said
he is out of town today but will be attending the meetings moving forward. She reported on the Rifle
Apartments project. She said that it will be entry level housing for essential workers in Rifle. She also said
there is a land swap with CDOT for park and ride development, and a mixed use development.

Merrit Linke commented via zoom. He gave a wolf update and spoke about a bill being introduced that would
keep payments for depredation anonymous. He said that that he appreciates Senator Roberts bringing this forth.
He said that he believes the conflict trainings have been a failure and that no one is attending them. He said it
feels condescending and is a very busy time of year for producers. He said that there is a citizen group asking
for more rule changes and clarification before more wolves are brought in. He said they are trying to get on the
CPW Commission meeting agenda for the rule making changes. He then spoke about Proposition 127 and he
appreciated that the CPW employees group said they are against ballot box biology.

Chris Nichols commented on the rail line that is being implemented in NW Colorado. He said that Craig is at
the end of the line and could help move workers from Craig to Steamboat. He said that CDOT is favorable to
making sure that Craig has a station on the line. He said that he thinks this could help with freight and
economic development as well. He said they would also have a maintenance and fueling facility at the end of
the line, which would help Craig too. He said they are also working on a new business park which buts up to
the rail line.

Dave Reynolds commented that he is thankful for AGNC and the mini-grants they have received including the
ice rink and the gaming tables at the park downtown in New Castle. He said they have had staffing issues and
have looked at filling positions from within. He said the ice rink usually opens in December.

Tinker Duclo spoke about opportunities within municipalities that CMC could give to their students. Dave
Reynolds said they are looking at starting a shadowing/intern program. Cody Davis said that their workforce
center will reimburse for training hours in Mesa County. Alicia Gresley said that BOCES and the City of Rifle
work together and they may have a template they could share.

Federal Delegate Update —
No representatives from the federal delegates joined the meeting.

Administrative Update — Tiffany Dickenson reviewed the proposed meeting schedule for 2025. She
discussed the conflict with WRI in May and it was determined that Mike Samson was the only one to have a
conflict. Lisa Piering asked why we don’t have the meeting in Rangely for Rio Blanco County. It was decided
that we could do a meeting in Rangely in 2026. A motion to approve the 2025 meeting schedule was made by
Chris Nichols; seconded by Tony Bohrer; the motion passed unanimously.

Tiffany reported on the EZ Conference in Alamosa. She said that Routt, Rio Blanco and Moffat will have
enhanced EZ status. She said that portions of Garfield will lose status. She reported on the Prosono strategic
planning and that they will be on the November board meeting agenda to do a presentation. She asked for a
vote to approve applying for mini-grants for 2025. A motion to approve AGNC applying for the 2025 mini
grants was made by Lisa Piering; seconded by Doug Overton; the motion passed unanimously.

Tiffany reported that we received the CEDS implementation grant award. She reported that the USFS is
making a rule on old growth and that we may need to write a letter to our senators. The board then requested
that AGNC draft a letter in opposition, as well. She reported that she was elected to the EDCC board and will
be serving on the policy committee.

PO BOX 593 GRAND JUNCTION, CO 81502 PHONE 970-665-1095 WWW.AGNC.ORG



New Business —

Next meeting - November 20, 2024, Garfield County Administration Building, 2" Floor Meeting Room, 195
W. 14" Street, Rifle, CO 81650

Adjournment — meeting was adjourned at 1:05pm.

Attendance:
IN PERSON VIA ZOOM
Heather Jones Merrit Linke, Grand County
Lisa Piering Matt Solomon
Stan Harbaugh Richard Orf
Chris Nichols Jeff Engell — CSU Extension
Doug Overton Shannon Scott
Tony Bohrer Travis Elliott
Alicia Gresley Carolyn Tucker — CDLE
Mike Samson Jennifer Pieroni
Cody Davis Dianna Orf (Ted Orf)
Bill Carlson Ray Beck
William Dearing Bill Shrum — DCI Operations
Grady Hazelton Kylie Brown — DCI
Dave Reynolds Ray Beck

Rochelle Firth
Lindy Browning
Jim Mann

Bobbie Daniel
Tinker Duclo
Tiffany Dickenson
Mistalynn Meyeraan
Toni Barrett

Eric Bergman
Maria De Cambra
James Russel

PO BOX 593 GRAND JUNCTION, CO 81502 PHONE 970-665-1095 WWW.AGNC.ORG



APPENDIX A

AREA AGENCY ON AGING OF
NORTHWEST COLORADO

Updates from AAA 10/23/2024:

» There were over 30 individuals that attended the “Western Colorado Candidate Forum on Aging-
Action Network” last month. Candidates acknowledged the aging population on the western slope, but
were pretty clear their focus would be working on Colorado’s budget deficit. There likely would not be
any increases in funding for older adult programs due to the Colorado budget deficit. They placed an
emphasis on local communities needing to figure out how best to support their older adults.

» The AAA’s visit with RTI International (contractors for the Administration for Community Living) went
well on 10/4/2024. They interviewed Colorado Legal Services, the Long-Term Care Ombudsman
Program, Hilltop’s Aging and Disability Resource of Colorado (ADRC) as well as the AAA. RTI
International was interested in how older adults with disabilities are supported by their communities.
The AAA discussed the organic partnerships and collaborations that have formed in the region. The
AAA recommended not creating any new policies that were unfunded mandates.

* The State Long-Term Care Ombudsman visited our region on 10/8 and 10/9 for their annual visit.
They shadowed all of our long-term care ombudsman. We will receive a letter in about a month on
the outcome of their visit.

» The AAA participated in the Age Friendly Expo on 10/14/2024. There was a great turnout.

» We received notice of our SFY24 Carryover funds. We will be receiving about $197,810 in service
dollars. The AAA will be working with providers in the next thirty days on how best to distribute these
funds. The AAA plans to present an updated budget at the next AGNC meeting.

« The Department of Regulatory Agencies recently provided $1,250 in media funding for the SHIP
(State Health Insurance Assistance Program) in Moffat and Rio Blanco counties. Additionally, the
AAA received a contract amendment from Health Care Policy and Financing (HCPF) to have our
Aging and Disability Resource of Colorado through Hilltop increase their scope of work by providing
group in-reach presentations at the Medicaid skilled nursing facilities in the region. The additional
funds are up to $48,500

PO BOX 593 GRAND JUNCTION, CO 81502 PHONE 970-665-1095 WWW.AGNC.ORG



APPENDIX B

Associated Governments of Northwest Colorado (AGNC)
Government Affairs Update

October 22, 2024

Interim Committees Completed and Moving forward to Elections
The following report is a recap and update of information provided in September because all focus now is on
the November 5 elections!

The Capitol is a flurry of furniture moving and maintenance as everyone prepares for the incoming lawmakers.
There will be at least 28 new legislators following the election — new in the sense of some moving from the
House to the Senate and some who have never before served under the Gold Dome. There could be even more
new faces, if some legislators lose their races because in politics nothing is certain! Orientation for new
legislators is set for November 18-19; December 5-6 and January 6. Even if members are simply moving from
House to Senate, orientation is critical because the two chambers employ different procedural rules and
customs.

Each election cycle brings the potential for new leadership in each chamber including top officers selected by
their peers and committee chairs appointed by their respective leadership. Appointments of committee
members usually occur in December following new- legislator orientation, leadership elections, and a careful
review of the relative numbers of each political caucus. Committee membership must reflect not only majority-
minority ratios, the backgrounds and strengths of potential committee members, and must also consider the
scheduling of each committee. Once introduced, bills are assigned to a “committee of reference” for initial
hearings and votes, with additional committee assignments such as Finance or Appropriations, when necessary.
When the respective chambers are not conducting floor work, six or seven committees may be meeting and
considering bills simultaneously, so assigning members to committees is a bit like working a Rubik’s cube.
From AGNC’s perspective, key committees to watch include Loal Government and Transportation, Agriculture,
Energy, and Finance.

Anticipated Legislation in 2025
The Legislative Council (leadership committee) approved the following Interim committee bills for introduction
once the session convenes January 8. Following the drafts approved Oct. 15 which may be of particular
interest to AGNC.

Water and Agricultural Resources Committee.

e Mining Reclamation & Interstate Compact - creates a “reclamation only” permit to incentivize removal
of waste rock piles from legacy mine sites; restricts use of real property for financial warranties, and
authorizes full membership in the Interstate Mining Compact Commission.

e Task force to study severance tax as water funding source.

e Exemption of agricultural buildings from collection and reporting of energy use data.

e Exempting individuals engaged in the business of inspecting, testing, or repairing backflow prevention
devices from licensure requirements but retains the licensure requirements for individuals engaged in the
installation or removal of the devices.

e C(Clarifying that for tax purposes a “ranch” includes the raising of all animals; not just cattle.

PO BOX 593 GRAND JUNCTION, CO 81502 PHONE 970-665-1095 WWW.AGNC.ORG



e Requiring CPW to keep confidential the personal information of persons filing claims for compensation
for wildlife damage and proactive non-lethal measures.

Transportation Legislation Review Committee (TLRC:

e Authorizing local government to generate fees from enterprises to support projects to protect vulnerable
road users (road users not in vehicles).

Wildfire Matters Review.

e A bill that provides immunity from civil liability for damage or injury to persons or property, other than that
which arises from gross negligence or willful misconduct, to a landowner who allows access to the
landowner's property for entry and exit in connection with an emergency.

Oversight Committee on Tax Policy
e A hill to create an online database for all qualifying state tax expenditures and state grant opportunities,
managed by the Department of Revenue.

Ballot Measures
Fourteen measures will appear on the November ballot, half of those are initiated by citizen petition and half
referred by the legislature. Measures that would change statute are designated as Propositions, while
Constitutional changes are Amendments. Marianne Goodland at Colorado Politics has summarized those
topics as follows:

Referred Measures

Amendment G

This measure expands the eligibility for the homestead exemption — a property tax deduction — for veteran
homeowners with a disability who are determined to be unemployable because of that disability and as
determined by the U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs.

Amendment H

This measure establishes an independent judicial discipline adjudicative board, set standards for judicial review
of a discipline case, and clarify when discipline proceedings become public. The measure came out of calls in
2022 and 2023 for changes in the judicial discipline process after reports showed a substantial increase in the
number of complaints about judges, most of which were dismissed by the state’s judicial commission for lack of
jurisdiction, as well as concerns about a lack of transparency around the judicial discipline process.
Amendment |

This measure makes those charged with first-degree murder ineligible for bail.

No issue committees are registered for or against the measure.

Amendment J

This measure overturns Amendment 43, adopted by voters in 2006, that banned same-sex marriage. The 2006
initiative was proposed by then-Lt. Gov. Jane Norton and her husband, former U.S. Attorney Mike Norton, and
was approved on a 55% to 45% vote.

However, Amendment 43 was deemed null after the U.S. Supreme Court ruled in favor of same-sex marriages
in Obergefell v. Hodges in 2015.

Amendment K

This measure adds an extra week for some specific election deadlines. That includes changing, from three
months, to three months and one week the deadline for filing initiative petitions with the Secretary of State one
week before the election. It also changes from 90 days to 83 days the deadline for referendum petitions that

PO BOX 593 GRAND JUNCTION, CO 81502 PHONE 970-665-1095 WWW.AGNC.ORG



challenge laws adopted by the General Assembly and gives judges and justices an extra week to file their intent
to run for office.
Proposition JJ
This measure basically “de-Bruces” the state’s sports betting tax revenue, allowing the state to retain and spend
all it collects. Under the measure, the state would use the first $29 million in revenue to regulate sports betting
and pay for gambling programs. Any revenue over that would go to the state’s water plan implementation cash
fund for water conservation and protection projects.
Voters approved Proposition DD in 2019, setting a 10% tax on sports betting proceeds. In 2022, the state
collected $25.6 million from those taxes, more than double the amount collected the previous year. In 2023,
revenues exceeded $27 million. According to Water Education Colorado, more than $60 million has been put
toward water projects.
The fiscal note on HB24-1436 estimates revenues will exceed $30 million annually beginning in 2023-24.
Proposition KK
This measure, which won no Republican votes and garnered some Democratic opposition, imposes an excise
tax on firearms and ammunition, effective April 1, 2025. If passed, it’s expected to generate $35 million in
2025-26, with the funds going toward the Colorado Crime Victim Services Fund for behavioral and mental
health and for school security.

Citizen Initiatives

Amendment 79
This measure enshrines the right to abortion in the Colorado Constitution and allows for the use of public funds
for abortion services, reversing a 1984 initiative known as Amendment 3.

Amendment 80

The measure amends the Colorado Constitution to say all K-12 students have the right to equal opportunity to
access a quality education, that parents have the right to direct their children's education, and that school choice
includes neighborhood, charter, private, and home schools, open enrollment options, and any future innovations
in education.

School Choice for Every Child is the issue committee supporting Amendment 80. Public Schools Strong is the
issue committee opposing the measure.

Proposition 127

This measure prohibits the hunting of bobcats, mountain lions, and lynx in Colorado. According to the Common
Sense Institute, some portions of the measure are already illegal in Colorado, such as hunting and trapping lynx
and mountain lions solely for trophies.

Issue committees have been formed to support and oppose. Cats Aren’t Trophies supports the measure;
Colorado Wildlife Deserve Better opposes the measure.

Proposition 128

This measure requires individuals convicted of certain violent crimes, including murder, sexual assault, and
aggravated robbery, to serve at least 85% of their sentence before being eligible for parole. Those convicted of a
violent offense three or more times will be required to serve their entire sentence without being eligible for
parole or early release. Coloradoans for Smart Justice is the Issue committee opposing the measure Suzanne
Taheri, a former official with the Secretary of State's Office, former State Senate candidate, and former
Arapahoe County GOP chair, and Michael Fields, President of Advance Colorado Institute are supporting the
measure

Proposition 129

This measure creates a new mid-level role in the veterinary field called a veterinary professional associate. The
position would require a Master's degree and would be a step above a veterinary technician but below a doctor
of veterinary medicine.

Proposition 130

This measure creates a "peace officer training and support fund™ within the Department of Public Safety to
assist in recruiting, training, and supporting law enforcement officers and their families. Suzanne Taheri, a

PO BOX 593 GRAND JUNCTION, CO 81502 PHONE 970-665-1095 WWW.AGNC.ORG



https://www.sos.state.co.us/pubs/elections/Initiatives/titleBoard/filings/2023-2024/89Final.pdf
https://www.sos.state.co.us/pubs/elections/Initiatives/titleBoard/filings/2023-2024/138OriginalFinal.pdf
https://www.sos.state.co.us/pubs/elections/Initiatives/titleBoard/filings/2023-2024/91Final.pdf
https://www.commonsenseinstituteus.org/colorado/research/ballot-issues/initiative-91-big-cat-hunting-ban#:~:text=Several%20of%20the%20proposals%20in,is%20against%20Colorado's%20existing%20regulations.
https://www.commonsenseinstituteus.org/colorado/research/ballot-issues/initiative-91-big-cat-hunting-ban#:~:text=Several%20of%20the%20proposals%20in,is%20against%20Colorado's%20existing%20regulations.
https://www.sos.state.co.us/pubs/elections/Initiatives/titleBoard/filings/2023-2024/112OriginalFinal.pdf
https://www.sos.state.co.us/pubs/elections/Initiatives/titleBoard/filings/2023-2024/145Final.pdf
https://www.sos.state.co.us/pubs/elections/Initiatives/titleBoard/filings/2023-2024/157Final.pdf

former official with the Secretary of State's Office, former State Senate candidate, and former Arapahoe County
GOP chair, and Michael Fields, President of Advance Colorado Institute are supporting the measure .
Proposition 131

This measure changes Colorado's primary system to an open system, with candidates chosen by voters
regardless of party affiliation and not by political parties. The four candidates with the most votes, regardless of
party, would then move on to the general election. The initiative also proposes a ranked-choice voting system,
in which voters would rank candidates rather than voting for just one. If approved by voters, the proposition
would have gone into effect in 2026, but the Colorado General Assembly, in the final week of its session,
passed SB 210, which would delay its implementation until 2028.

PO BOX 593 GRAND JUNCTION, CO 81502 PHONE 970-665-1095 WWW.AGNC.ORG


https://www.sos.state.co.us/pubs/elections/Initiatives/titleBoard/filings/2023-2024/310OriginalFinal.pdf
https://leg.colorado.gov/bills/sb24-210

